N	E	W	S	L	E	T	T	E	R
E		1	DIVISION	OF MI	LITARY	PSYCHOL	.OGY		4.
W				DIVIS	ION 19				
S	•			WINTE	R 1978				
L			EX	ECUTIV	E COMMI	TTEE			
E		Pres Past Act: Repr Meml	resentat ber-at-L	lect: ent: etary- ive to arge:	Elaine Earl I. Treasur Counci Charle	N. Tay Jones er: Ja l: Ear s A. Th	mes K. A l A. All lomas, Jr R. Mack	uisi	
			STANDIN	G COMM	ITTEE C	HAIRMEN	<u>.</u>		
T		Fel: Meml	ction: lows: R bership: gram: D	obert Nanc	S. Nich	ols	(Elaine	N. Tay	lor)
E				ED	ITOR		•		
R		Psyc Wal	liam A. chology ter Reed hington,	Servic Army	Medical	Center			

### DIVISION 19 COMMITTEE MEMBERS

# Fellows Committee

Robert S. Nichols, Chairperson (to September 1978) Preston S. Abbott (to September 1979) Edna J. Hunter (to September 1980)

# Membership Committee

Nancy Guinn, Chairperson (to September 1978) Robert D. McCullah (to September 1979) F. Joseph Fishburne (to September 1980)

# Program Committee

Donald F. Haggard, Chairperson (to September 1978) A. David Mangelsdorff (to September 1979) Eric Gunderson (to September 1980)

### Nominations and Elections Committee

Elaine N. Taylor, The President-Elect Charles A. Thomas, Jr., Member-at-Large of Executive Committee Robert R. Mackie, Member-at-Large of Executive Committee

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENTPaul D. Nelson	1
MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING OF THE DIVISION OF MILITARY PSYCHOLOGY - 26 August 1977	3
MINUTES OF THE OUTGOING EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE DIVISION OF MILITARY PSYCHOLOGY	9
MINUTES OF THE INCOMING EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE	12
REPORT FROM THE TREASURER	15
REPRESENTATION TO COUNCIL	15
1977 PROGRAM REPORT	16
1978 MILITARY PSYCHOLOGY AWARD	17
TRI-SERVICE PRE-CONVENTION WORKSHOP FOR UNIFORMED PSYCHOLOGISTS	18
INTER-UNIVERSITY SEMINAR-UPDATE	18
SIXTH ANNUAL PSYCHOLOGY IN DOD SYMPOSIUM	19
ROSTER OF NEW DIVISION MEMBERS AND ASSOCIATES	20
INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE ON PSYCHOLOGICAL STRESS AND ADJUSTMENT	21
CALL FOR FELLOW NOMINATIONS.	21
EDITOR'S COMMENT	22

#### MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT

#### Paul D. Nelson

The Division of Military Psychology will more than likely remain one of the smaller Divisions in membership of the APA. But, with knowledge of the historical and current diversity of function among its members, we know it to be a Division reflecting the full range of scientific and professional activities in which psychologists engage. And, during this time at which the greater APA is strained with tensions induced by the very forces of such diversity, it is my hope and firm belief that our Division, as a microcosm of the APA, will in fact grow stronger.

The signs are there: The leadership of many years is bearing fruit. Last year's Program Committee, Membership Committee, and Fellows Committee, under the leadership of Charles Thomas, Bob Holz, and Bob Mackie, respectively, moved the Division aggressively ahead. The pre-convention workshop this year with large attendance of active duty clinical psychologists, our packed meeting rooms throughout the APA, the approximate 10% increase in our membership, and Division 19's performance in gaining new Fellows among its ranks are all signs of good health in our Division. That our President-Elect will be the first woman to preside over the Division is anoth such sign, more so I'm sure than the fact of your current President being the first active duty officer elected to that position. All of this is to say that "business as usual" prevails not as the climate of the times in Division 19.

Building upon this momentum, I plan to involve as many people as possible in Division activities. For one thing, I sense there is interest in participation, especially among our newer members. Secondly, the number and complexity of issues around us --- scientific and professional, legal and philosophical --- is great. If we are to remain viable as a Division, I believe we must relate those issues to the business of military psychologists.

The Executive Committee, therefore, has granted me license to form several ad hoc committees this year to address and better define for Division 19 the issues or topics I proposed at our committee meeting last September. I hope to eventually involve on those committees all who have indicated interest in serving. I have tried to avoid over representation of our large research laboratory community in chairing these committees, though their membership on committees should be strong when appropriate. I have tried to achieve tri-service representation in chairpersons, so if there is a Navy bias it was not by intent! I have asked military officers and civilians to serve. I have had enthusiastic response from those asked to chair committees to date, even the few unable to accept. Here is the lineup to date:

LTC Richard Hartzell (USA) will chair a Committee on "Military Mental Health Programs and Professional Issues";

Dr. Bert King will chair a Committee on "Organizational Psychology Trends and Professional Issues";

LTC Ralph Chason (USAF) has been asked to chair a Committee on "Issues in the Teaching of Military Psychology";

Dr. Meredith Crawford will chair a Committee on "Legislative Affairs and AAP Liaison";

CDR Rick Doll (USN) will Chair A Committee on "Aptitude Tests, Testing, and Training Issues";

Dr. Walter Wilkins has agreed to work with others interested in the "History of Military Psychology and Psychologists";

Dr. Robert Smith will chair a Committee on "Research Reports, Technology Transfer, and R&D Product Implementation";

Dr. Randy Chambers has been asked to chair a Committee on "Engineering Psychology Trends and Professional Issues".

Let me know if you wish to work with any of the above Committees. It is my plan that these Committees will interact with other Divisions of the APA or Committees thereof, as appropriate, and that each will report to the membership on its activities during the year and at the annual meeting of the APA.

In addition, I have asked LTC Cecil Harris (USA) to chair a new Audit Committee of our Division Financial Records (a move the Executive Committee considered wise if not necessary). Other Division leaders this year are: Dr. Earl Jones (Past-President), Dr. Elaine Taylor (President-Elect), Dr. James Arima (Acting Secretary-Treasurer), Dr. Earl Alluisi (Council Representative), Dr. Robert Mackie, and Dr. Charles Thomas (Executive Committee Members at Large), Dr. Donald Haggard (Program), Dr. Nancy Guinn (Membership), COL Robert Nichols (Fellows), and CPT William Weitz (Communications/Newsletter Editor).

With that support, the grand tradition of our Division and what I regard to be a future of equal challenge and growth, it is a privilege indeed to serve as your President this year. Let me know of your interests, your willingness to serve, or any ideas you have about our Division and its future. I will do all within my capacity to serve you well.

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING OF THE DIVISION OF MILITARY PSYCHOLOGY 26 August 1977

The annual business meeting of the Division of Military Psychology of APA was called to order by President Earl I. Jones at 1:00 pm on August 26, 1977 in the Hyatt-on-Union Square, San Francisco, California. Thirty-seven people were present at the opening of the meeting.

The following items were covered under old business.

# Minutes Approved

1. The minutes of the last business meeting were approved as published in the Fall 1976 Newsletter.

# Review Committee Appointed

2. President Jones appointed William A. Weitz, Robert Mackie, and Arthur Drucker to a committee to review and approve the minutes of the business and executive committee meetings prior to their publication in the fall Newsletter.

### Treasurer's Report

3. The report on the division treasury and the Military Psychology Awards Fund was given by Secretary-Treasurer Elaine N. Taylor. Approximate figures, only, were available at the time of the meeting because of an unexpected closing of the Savings and Loan office (holder of the accounts) on the day before the business meeting. Reported as reasonable close approximations were \$1800.00 in the treasury and \$700.00 in the Awards Fund. It was noted that a formal report will be filed in the division records when a statement from the Savings and Loan becomes available.

### AAP Contribution

4. The Treasurer reported that a contribution of \$100.00 will again be forwarded to the Association of the Advancement of Psychology, pending approval of the Incoming Executive Committee. This contribution is in keeping with the practice established by vote of the members present at the annual business meetings of 1975 and 1976.

### Report from the Membership Committee

5. President-Elect, CPT Paul Nelson, presented the report for the Chairman of the Membership Committee, Robert Holz, who was unable to attend the annual meeting.

During this year, the division has grown by 10 new associates and 41 members. Names of these new members of the division will be published in the forthcoming newsletter. They have been approved by vote of the Cutgoing Executive Committee (see section 9 on new by-laws) contingent upon meeting requirements for membership in APA, in cases where this requirement is relevent.

# Report from the Fellows Committee

6. Robert Mackie, Chairman of the Fellows Committee, reported that of 15 names submitted to the APA Membership Committee, 10 have been approved.In addition, one person who is already a Fellow in APA was accepted by the Executive Committee for approval by Fellows at the Business Meeting.

Robert Mackie was highly commended for his letter which accompanied the nominations. It was based upon an historical perspective of fellows' density following World War II and upon the greatly diverse interests and contributions of the nominees proposed this year.

Bob pointed out that the proposed new Fellows must still go to the APA Council of Representatives for final approval.

The ten persons proposed for initial election were:

Steven F. Bucky
Richard E. Doll
Gloria L. Grace
Robert C. Houston
Edna J. Hunter

Bert T. King
William H. Melching
Edgar L. Shriver
Elaine N. Taylor
Gilbert C. Tolhurst

The "old" APA Fellow nominated for Fellow of Division 19 was Edward R. Jones.

After nominees present temporarily left the meeting room, a vote of Fellows in attendance was taken. Each of the nominees was approved for Fellow status in this voting.

### Report from Representative to APA Council

- 7. The Council Representative, Dr. William McClelland, reported on six items, judged to be of major interest to the division.
  - a. The APA budget for 1977-78 shows \$64,000 in surplus and \$200,000 in liquid reserve. \$47,000 may be required to pay taxes on unrelated business income. The 1978 budget will be approximately \$8 million. The gain in liquid reserve over the year should be approximately \$152,000.
  - b. Our Representative to Council finds the APA to be in good shape fiscally. He commended the APA Central Office for developing a five-year plan which should bring the liquid reserve to \$1.5 million.
  - c. Bill reported that there will be no raise in dues this year. However, he anticipates an increase in dues within the next several years caused by inflation.
  - d. The AFA is in the process of buying a building to house some of the AFA functions at lower cost than is the case at our present AFA Central Office building. This will free some AFA Central Office

space for rental at more favorable rates plus space in the new building. While taxes will be paid on rental income, it is anticipated that a net gain of approximately \$50,000 will be realized in the first year after purchase.

- e. Bill announced that the proposed magazine, "Psychology" which was intended for the lay public will not be published. Council voted 2 to 1 against this proposed publication. (Bill's vote was against.) The magazine would have been paid for by an automatic levy of \$3.00 on each member of APA,
- f. A committee on research funding was voted for and funded. This committee will be monitored by the Board of Scientific Affairs.

# Report from Newsletter Editor

8. The Newsletter Editor, CPT William A. Weitz, reported that three newsletters were published during the year. The last of these was the pamphlet on the Division 19 program for the annual convention. Bill expressed the division's appreciation to Bob Mackie for his organization's role in duplicating and mailing the newsletter. Also thanked were Bob Mackie's secretary, Ms. Linda Lee Chilton of Human Factors Research and Ms. Beth Esser of Walter Reed Army Medical Center for their assistance in preparing the newsletter. A letter of appreciation will be sent to each of these individuals by President-Elect Nelson.

Bill urged all members to send news items to him during the coming year.

# Report on New By-Laws

9. Earl Jones reported that the new by-laws became effective on 19 August 1977. By that date, 225 members had returned ballots indicating approval of the proposed by-laws to Earl.

### Results of Election

10. Paul Nelson, Chairman of the Elections Committee, reported that following the call for nominations, slightly more than 10% of the membership responded. Paul noted that the respondees seemed to be highly representative of the division membership in age, geographic location, and roles/interests in military psychology. Nominees for President-Elect were: Dr. Donald F. Haggard, Dr. Robert Nichols, and Dr. Elaine N. Taylor. Nominees for Representative to Council were: Dr. Nancy Guinn, Dr. Earl A. Alluisi, and Dr. Charles Thomas. Results of the final ballotting were: President-Elect, Elaine Taylor, and Representative to Council, Earl A. Alluisi.

### Report on the Frogram

11. In the absence of the Program Committee Chairman, Dr. Charles Thomas, this report was given by the President. Dr. Jones noted that the previous day's workshop on priority issues of uniformed psychologists seemed to be very successful. The workshop was led by Dr. Richard E. Hartzell, Office of the Surgeon General, Department of the Army, and was attended by approximately 48 people.

The importance of indicating the primary division affairs you plan to attend when completing the convention registration form was pointed out. AFA allocates program hours to divisions on the basis of this entry and attendance at division meetings.

Dr. Jones thanked the committee for the excellent program planned for this convention. Besides Charles Thomas, Committee members were Donald Haggard, A. David Mangelsdorff, and Eric Gunderson, who joined the committee to replace Dirk Prather at the time that Prather received a European assignment.

The following items were covered as new business.

1. Presentation of Military Psychology Awards - Dr. Arthur Drucker, Chairman of the Military Psychology Awards Committee announced that two awards for outstanding contributions in the field of military psychology would be presented - one for organizational contributions, and one for individual contributions.

Recipient of the Organizational Award was the Department of Behavioral Science and Leadership of the U.S. Air Force Academy. A citation was read and a plaque presented. COL John W. Williams, Chairman of the Department, received the award on behalf of the Department and spoke a few words of appreciation for this recognition.

Recipient of the individual award was Dr. Walter L. Wilkins, Naval Health Research Center. A citation was read in which special recognition was given to Dr. Wilkins for his sustained outstanding contribution to military research over many years. A plaque was presented to Dr. Wilkins who briefly thanked the Division.

Both citations will be placed in the Division files.

2. Resignation of Two Officers from Present Positions - Paul Nelson, incoming president announced that, in keeping with the by-laws, Elaine Taylor, the new President-Elect, would resign as Secretary-Treasurer at the conclusion of the Business Meeting. Her replacement, unanimously approved by the Outgoing Executive Committee, will be Dr. James K. Arima, who will serve the remaining year of the three-year term.

The members present were also informed that Earl Alluisi will resign his post as Member-at-Large (which was to run until 1979) effective January 1978 and, at that time, begin his term as Representative to Council.

Appointment of the new Member-at-Large to complete the period of January to September 1978 will be made by the Incoming Executive Committee. During the spring 1978 elections, Division members will have the opportunity to elect a new Member-at-Large whose term will become effective at the 1978 annual meetings.

3. Call for Other New Business - President Jones asked for reports on any other new business. It was determined that all new business had been reported.

4. Announcements of Present Appointments and Current Nominations for APA
Boards and Committees

President Jones reported on present appointments and current nominations to APA Boards and Committees as follows:

#### a. Serving

- 1) William A. McClelland is beginning the first of a three-year term on the APA Policy and Planning Board.
- 2) Earl A. Alluisi is beginning the first of a five-year term on the Publications and Communications Board.

#### b. Nominated

- 1) Julien M. Christensen, Charles A. Thomas, Jr., and Paul D. Nelson to serve on the APA Membership Committee (two to be elected).
- 2) H. Wallace Sinaiko and Ellis B. Page to serve on the Finance Committee (two to be elected).
- 3) Jay E. Uhlaner, James J. Regan, and Earl I. Jones to serve Committee on Scientific and Professional Ethics and Conduct (three to be elected).
- 4) James K. Arima to serve on the Band of Convention Affairs (two to be elected, one for a six-year term, one for one year to complete the balance of a term).
- 5) Robert Mackie, Dean Havron, Virginia Zachert, and William Weitz to serve on the Board of Professional Affairs (three to be elected).
- 6) Meredith Crawford, Gordon Eckstrand, and Howard McFann to serve on the Baord of Scientific Affairs (three to be elected).
- 7) Elaine Taylor to serve on the Education and Training Board (three to be elected).
- 8) Edwin A. Fleishman to serve on the Committee on International Affairs (three to be elected).
- 9) Paul D. Nelson, Robert Nichols, and Arthur Drucker to serve on the Board of Social and Ethical Responsibility for Psychology (three to be elected).
- 10) Ross Morgan and A. David Mangelsdorff to serve on the Committee on Employment and Human Resources (two to be elected).
- 11) Edwin A. Fleishman to serve as a Representative to the International Union of Scientific Psychology (one to be elected).

- 5. Other Announcements Paul Nelson, President-Elect, urged all members to indicate their interests in serving on standing committees and new ad hoc committees that he will propose this coming year. He asked that you contact him or other members of the Executive Committee as to your interests.
- 6. President Earl I. Jones thanked the members for their attendance and adjourned the meeting at 2:00 pm. At the close of the meeting, 50 members were in attendance.

Respectfully submitted,

Elaine N. Taylor Secretary-Treasurer Division of Military Psychology MINUTES OF THE OUTCOING EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE DIVISION OF MILITARY PSYCHOLOGY, 26 August 1977.

The Outgoing Executive Committee of the Division of Military Psychology met at the Hyatt-on-Union Square, San Francisco, California on 26 August 1977. The meeting was called to order by President Earl I. Jones at 9:10 pm. Fresent were: Earl A. Alluisi, Arthur J. Drucker, Robert R. Mackie, William A. McClelland, Paul D. Nelson, Elaine N. Taylor, Charles A. Thomas, and William A. Weitz.

The following items were covered.

- 1. Approval of Business Meeting Minutes of 1976 The minutes of the last business meeting were approved as circulated by a vote of the members present.
- 2. Review Committee Appointed (See Minutes of Business Meeting for 1977, Section 2 under old business.).
- 3. Report on the Division Program Charles A. Thomas, Chairman of the Program Committee, reported that 56 papers and 16 symposia had been proposed. Of these, 32 papers and 7 symposia had been accepted and could be scheduled. within the hours allocated by APA.

The paper format of last year will again be used - allowing five minutes for introduction of each paper and approximately 15-20 minutes for interested attendees to meet with individual presenters for a more thorough coverage of their topics.

Three of the symposia will be jointly sponsored. Joint sponsors will be Division 19 with Division 14; Divisions 19, 14, and the International University Seminar on Armed Forces & Society (IUS); and Division 19 and IUS.

Chuck Thomas announced that Dr. Walter L. Wilkins, Naval Health Research Center, was presenting the Invited Address.

Chuck Thomas reported on the preconvention workshop as highly successful. (See Minutes of Business Meeting for 1977, Section 11, under old business)

It was announced that the social hour would be observed at 5 pm on Sunday, following the Presidential Address.

Chairman Thomas thanked those who had served on the committee. (See minutes of Business Meeting for 1977, Section 11, under old business for committee members.)

4. Report on Membership - (See Minutes of Business Meeting for 1977, Section 5 of old business.)

Based on an inquiry from an applicant before the meeting and the personal knowledge of several committee members concerning friends and associates who made inquiries about membership, but with lack of success, a discussion of application procedures ensued.

Earl Jones recommended that the President and Secretary-Treasurer have membership applications forms, as well as the Membership Committee, in order to expedite the processing of applicants. William McClelland suggested that the Membership Committee review the application form to decide if it can be simplified.

William Weitz suggested that Nancy Guinn, the incoming Chairlady of the committee inquire about the processing of interest slips by APA. President-Elect, Paul Nelson, will so advise her.

- 5. Approval of Proposed By-Laws (See Minutes of Business Meeting for 1977, Section 9 of old business.)
- 6. Report of Fellows Nominations Robert Mackie, Chairman of the Fellows Committee reported that ten nominees for Fellow had been approved by the APA Membership Committee for endorsement by Division Fellows at the Business Meeting. Cne APA "old" Fellow was nominated for Fellow in Division 19. (See Minutes of Business Meeting of 1977, Section 6 under old business.)

It was moved and seconded that the nominees be approved by the Outgoing Executive Committee and be recommended for approval by those members present at the Business Meeting. The motion carried unanimously (with the exception of Elaine Taylor, a nominee, who abstained).

The committee was thanked for an outstanding job by President Jones.

7. Report from Representative to Council - William A. McClelland reported on Council activities as Division 19 Representative to Council. (See Minutes of Business Meeting of 1977, Section 7 of old business.)

Bill reported that the council had met all day Thursday and would be meeting for four hours on Sunday. The issues for Sunday's meeting were: "Regulation of the Practice of Psychology" and "Proposal on Human Rights". Also, on Sunday a meeting concerning states that have not approved the Equal Rights Amendment (ERA) is planned. In its longer-range pre-convention planning, APA has set aside space in Atlanta, Georgia; Las Vegas, Nevada; and New Orleans, Louisianna for the next several annual meetings (following Toronto, Canada). The states which contain these cities have not yet approved ERA. The APA lawyer(s) has advised Council that APA could be subject to suit if plans are cancelled, since rooms have already been set aside. More particularly, the ERA is a question of ratification by states, not cities.

Finally, on the agenda for Sunday, a Human Rights Statement, proposed by the International Affairs Committee was to be considered. This statement declares that scientists around the world should be given freedom for travel, communication, and exchange of ideas with other scientists from any part of the world. Bill Weitz asked Representative to Council if any Council item was concerned with an organization of uniformed psychologists stationed in foreign countries. Bill reported that this group was seeking affiliation with APA to explore licensing procedures, et cetera. Dr. McClelland answered that this had not been an agenda item. He believed that this was more an administrative matter for APA to consider.

- 8. Report from the Newsletter Editor (See Minutes of Annual Business Meeting of 1977, Section 8 of old business.)
- 9. Report on Elections (See Minutes of Annual Business Meeting of 1977, Section 10 of old business.)

A related item on elections concerns the resignation of Secretary-Treasurer, Elaine N. Taylor and Member-At-Large, Earl A. Alluisi. (See Minutes of Business Meeting of 1977, Section 2 under new business.)

- 10. Report on Coalitions in APA William McClelland suggested that we affiliate with the various coalitions in APA. These are: Professional, Academic Research, and Public Affairs. It was moved and seconded that we affiliate with each of these coalitions and make a contribution of \$25 to each in this coming year. This motion carried. (Discussion: Our division reflects interests and representation in each of these three areas.)
- 11. Announcements of Present Appointments & Current Nominations for APA

  Boards & Committees (See Minutes of Business Meeting of 1977, Section

  4 under new business.)
- 12. Meeting of Incoming Executive Committee Noted President-Elect, Paul Nelson reminded the members of the Incoming Executive Committee that they would be meeting on 27 August 1977 at 4 pm.
- 13. Report on the Treasury (See Minutes of Business Meeting of 1977, Section 3 of old business.)
- 14. Report on Military Psychology Awards (See Minutes of Annual Business Meeting of 1977, Section 1 of new business.)

The meeting was adjourned by President Jones at 11:50 am.

Respectfully submitted,

Elaine N. Taylor Secretary-Treasurer Division of Military Psychology Minutes of the Incoming Executive Committee, Hyatt on Union Square, San Francisco, Calif., 27 August 1977.

The meeting was called to order at 1615 by President Paul Nelson. In attendance were Earl Jones, Robert Nichols, Elaine Taylor, Bill Weitz, Charles Thomas, Earl Alluisi, Jim Arima, and Robert Mackie. William McClelland joined the meeting later.

The President began the meeting by stating that he would like to start things off by reading a "laundry list" of items for old and new business. They were:

- 1. Confirm final roster of new members to send off to Jane Hildreth. Ther were three or four additional names.
- 2. Elect a temporary replacement for Earl Aluissi as a representative-atlarge to take over in January 1978. The President reported having asked Bob Mackie, who was willing to do so.
- 3. Send letters of appreciation to editorial and secretarial assistants who worked on the newsletter.
  - 4. Take up the matter of \$25 to each of the interest group coalitions.
  - 5. The publicity brochure which Ralph Chason had been working on.

The President asked if there were any other items to add to the list.

Earl Jones said that we ought to work out a relationship with the Human Factors Society on defending the Defense budget in respect to psychological research.

Elaine Taylor brought up the request by the Inter-University Seminar on Armed Forces and Society for an article on organizational effectiveness for their journal. Bob Nichols said he would take the matter up at breakfast with Ellen Stern the following day. An informal discussion followed. Earl Jones suggested the paper by Walter Wilkins. Earl Alluisi said that a training article had been refused by Janowitz as being too technical. Paul Nelson said we ought to be able to do better than OD.

### Old Business

The first item was the election of a representative-at-large to replace Earl Alluisi. Earl Alluisi, on the recommendation of the President, nominated Robert Mackie. Earl Jones seconded the nomination. There was no discussion, and Robert Mackie was unanimously elected to the post. The President then thanked Robert Mackie and Jim Arima for serving in the temporary jobs for the remainder of the year.

Confirmation of the roster of new members approved by the Membership Committee was complicated by the fact that there were several additional nominations whose applications had been completed but not processed by the Membership Committee. The motion was made and seconded that the list approved by

1.

# Executive Commissee Meeting, 27 August--continued.

the committee and three others--Dr. Gerald Krueger, Dr. Alvin Wooten, and Marjorie Bauman--be confirmed for membership in Division 19. There was no discussion and the motion was unanimously adopted. The applications of Dr. Bruce Becker and Major Bryan Chermel were complicated by the fact that their status in the American Psychological Association had not yet been established. To wait for the results of their membership applications in the APA would mean that they could not become members of Division 19 for another year. The motion was made and seconded to elect them to the appropriate class of membership in Division 19 contingent upon their acceptance to the appropriate class by APA. The motion was carried unanimously.

Discussion followed as to how the new fellows and new members were to be notified. The motion was made, seconded, and unanimously passed that the past secretary, Elaine Taylor, would do this.

### New Business

The President introduced new business by stating that he wanted to see many work committees, and that what we wanted to do will drive our budget.

At the suggestion of Charles Thomas, Joe Fishburns was nominated and duly elected to the Membership Committee. Edna J. Hunter was nominated, seconded, and duly elected to the Fellows Committee, contingent upon her acceptance.

The President then said that he wanted to involve new members in the program and have them participate in Division activities. He was thinking of constructive committee work and similar activities—not busy work. He read off a list of professional issues that could be worked on:

Legislative affairs, liaison with AAP.

Research ethics and use of humans in research, liaison with the national committee.

Military mental health programs and professional issues; coordination with Divisions 17, 28, and 27.

Military personnel and organizational management, liaison with Division 14. Human factors engineering, environmental design, and liaison with Division 21 and the Human Factors Society.

The history of military psychology.

Participation of uniformed, military psychologists.

A discussion followed on some of the specific points and on the problem of getting started in these areas. The consensus was that there should be ad hoc committees in these areas, each with an ad hoc chairperson. The members in attendance agreed that the President should appoint these chairpersons for one-year terms.

The President reported that he had not decided whether a mid-year meeting would be held. The matter is held in abeyance.

(Earl Alluisi had to leave the meeting at this point.)

Elaine Taylor brought up the need for an audit committee to audit the treasurer's accounts, particularly because of the impending transfer to the new treasurer. LTC Cecil Harris, CPT Paul Best, and Dr. Jim Banks--all of whom were at Fort Ord--were considered. It was decided that LTC Harris and CPT Best would be sufficient for the committee, contingent upon their acceptance.

Turing to publicity and the newsletter, the President asked Bill Weitz to continue as editor of the newsletter for one more year. He then mentioned the need for a systematic way of transfering the editorship. He suggested one way would be to make it necessary for the incumbent to find a replacement. With respect to other publicity outlets, some members expressed strong dissatisfaction with the APA Monitor and cited specific incidents where the Monitor staff would not accept news/announcements from Division 19 for the Monitor.

Elaine Taylor brought up the need for a new and updated handout on military psychology. She said that the Division gets many inquiries and an explanatory letter is needed when the old handout is used because it is outdated. The president said that he would attempt to get the work that Ralph Chason had put into the writing of a new version and distribute it to the Executive Committee for review. He solicited opinion on the demand for the item in order to determine how many copies to print. There was general agreement that, if a copy were to go to each Division member, then perhaps 1,000 copies should be printed.

A discussion followed on paperwork in general. There was mention of a great deal of APA-generated paperwork. There is also the problem of inquiries from all sources. The President thought that forms—such as for fellow and member applications—could be made more generally available. He also stated that new stationary was needed with new names on the mast for the current year.

The meeting next took up the matter of a budget and expenditures. The first item was the production and mailing of the newsletter. Bob Mackie was asked to continue with it for one more year. He agreed. He is also to give the Division his costs with the possibility that these might be reimbursed. The next item was the Division dues and how much they should be. The outgoing and incoming treasurers were given the responsibility for making recommendations. Expenses for the standing committees and the President were decided upon to be the same as for last year. If there were any questions, the former committee chairpersons were to be asked about it. The president, as last year, was to have a working fund of \$100.

In closing the meeting, the President thought it worthwhile to mention that, for the first time, the Division had a military President and a female President Elect.

Bob Nichols brought up the matter of the Division's contribution to the AAP. There was some uncertainty as to whether this had been taken care of in the annual business meeting. He made the motion that, if it had not been taken care of at the annual business meeting, Division 19 contribute its \$100 corporate

### Executive Committee Meeting, 27 August 1977 -- continued:

membership to AAF. The motion was seconded and unanimously carried.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectively submitted,

James K. Arima Secretary-Treasurer

# Report from the Treasurer

The balance in the Division 19 treasury as of 31 August 1977 was \$1,834.11. With the addition of \$12.77 in accrued interest, the total existing funds amount to \$1,846.88.

The balance in the Military Psychology Award Fund as of 31 August 1977 was \$711.19. Addition of accrued interest in the amoung of \$7.11 brought the balance to \$718.30.

### Representation to Council

Our membership received its yearly apportionment ballot in November, 1977, which is used by APA to determine the number of Council Representatives each Division, State Association, or Coalition will be entitled to for 1979. Division 19, being small in size, has only a single representative to Council at the present time. Yet, through this representation, we gain in two critical ways; (1) we are able to stay in the mainstream of communication about issues and items of current importance within the APA and (2) we are able, through our representative, to offer our unique perspective and crientation on some of these issues so as to hopefully influence other voting members in Council. It is therefore critical that Division 19 members continue to allocate some proportion of their ballot to our Division so that we are able to maintain a Council Representative, even if we are allocated only one voting member.

TO: President, Division 19

FROM: Chairperson, Program Committee

SUBJECT: 1977 Program Report

For the first time in several years, this program committee was required to screen many more paper and symposia proposals than it was possible to accept. Fifty-six paper proposals were submitted and thirty-two were accepted. Sixteen symposia proposals were submitted and seven were accepted.

The thirty-two papers will be presented in five one hour paper fair sessions. This format, introduced by Jim Arima last year, allows for six or seven papers to be presented during the hour. The presenter discusses his paper for five minutes, then is available for about the last twenty minutes of the hour, for further discussion with interested attendees.

Three of the seven symposia were jointly sponsored by either Division 14, the Inter-University Seminar on Armed Forces and Society, or both.

Walter Wilkins accepted the committes invitation to give an address on "Psychological Aspects of Health and Work in Military Life."

An active attempt was made to have a second invited address. However a multitude of scheduling problems precluded successful closure of this effort.

An all day workshop for uninformed psychologists was scheduled for August 25 and was attended by active duty psychologists from the three military branches. The workshop was designed to identify priority issues and problems of uninformed psychologists and to formulate and consolidate action steps to deal with those issues and problems.

A Division 19 social hour was scheduled for Sunday, August 28 following the presidential address of Earl Jones.

I wish to thank the other members of the committee who served so industriously: Don Haggard, Eric Gunderson and Dave Mangelsdorff. Eric Gunderson graciously agreed to serve on short notice after Dick Prather had to take a leave of absence from the committee due to an overseas assignment.

Thank you for the opportunity to serve as chairman of this committee.

#### 1978 MILLTARY PSYCHOLOGY AWARD

The American Psychological Association's Division of Military Psychology (APA Division 19) is pleased to announce the continuation of its award for outstanding contributions to military psychology. The award, to be presented no more frequently than annually, is acknowledged by plaques for the honored person(s), the institution or firm, and where appropriate the sponsoring organization or agency. The award will be announced and the plaques presented at the annual meeting of the Division.

In judging the outstanding contribution of the year to military psychology, the principal criterion will be the excellence of the product of broadly defined military psychology activities, to include but not be limited to the products of research, development, application, services, or management.

All persons will be eligible for the award, and the winning contribution may be that of an individual or a team. Winners need not be members of the American Psychological Association or of APA Division 19. Judging will be accomplished by a standing committee of the Division of Military Psychology consisting of the Past President (Chair), the President, and the President-Elect.

NOMINATIONS for consideration may be submitted by agencies, organizations, sponsors, or individuals. Proponency by persons or organizations other than those responsible for the nominated product is also acceptable; the goal is to receive the best set of nominations from which a valid selection of the most outstanding contribution to military psychology can be made for this year's award.

NOMINATIONS should consist of the report(s) or description(s) of product(s) the nominee wishes the committee to consider, along with an abstract (of 300 to 500 words). The nominee should give special attention to his explanation of those aspects of the product which make it, in his judgment, outstanding.

Prior year submissions which did not receive the award may be resubmitted.

NOMINATIONS should be submitted no later than 15 April 1978 to:

Dr. Earl I. Jones, Chairman Military Psychology Award Committee Navy Personnel Research and Development Center San Diego, California 92152

# Tri-Service Pre-Convention Workshop for Uniformed Psychologists

On 25 August 1977 Division 19 sponsored the first tri-service workshop attended by 48 uniformed applied and research psychologists from the Army, Navy, and Air Force. As invited participants in the Workshop, representatives from APA, AAP, Congress, and the Champus Evaluation Committee served the group as consultants in their specific areas. The invited presenters included: Dr. Theodore Blau, President of APA; Mr. Clarance Martin, Co-Executive Director of AAP; Dr. Patrick DeLeon, Administrative Assistant to Senator Daniel K. Innoye; Dr. Art Centor, Director of APA's Professional Affairs Office, and Dr. Dan Alevy, Director of the Champus Evaluation Committee of APA. Dr. Jerry Clark, COL, USA (Ret) was coordinator of the work groups, while Dr. Charles A. Thomas, Jr., Division 19 Chairperson, served as director of the Workshop.

The significant issues focused on by the work groups consisted of the following: pro pay; credentialing; promotion; recruitment and retention; professional recognition and status; communication; career patterns and assignments; institutional bias; continuing education; rating schemes; hospital admittance privileges; organizational structure, i.e., allied sciences in MSC; representativeness of Division 19 in representing uniformed psychologists within APA; and formation of an ad hoc committee to represent the concerns of uniformed psychologists in Division 19, in addition to getting increased communication through the newsletter.

The outcome of the day-long workshop was a meeting of the Psychology consultants from the three services with the Division 19 President, Paul Nelson. A follow-up meeting on 19 October 1977 at Bethesda National Naval Medical Center, resulted in members being selected to serve on the new ad hoc committees being appointed by the President (see President's Message). All interested uniformed psychologists are strongly encouraged to volunteer for active participation on a committee of their choosing by establishing contact with the named chairperson for that committee.

### Inter-University Seminar-Update

Many members of Division 19 are aware of the program of the Inter-University Seminar on Armed Forces and Society, which seeks to supply a broad interdisciplinary forum for research and analysis of military affairs. We hope that this report will be of relevance to those psychologists whose interests converge with the work of the IUS.

At the recent convention of the American Psychological Association, the Inter-University Seminar and Division 19 organized two joint panel sessions, both well attended and intellectually stimulating. With the help of Colonel Robert S. Nichols, a member of both Division 19 and the IUS Executive Council, the meetings "Military Unions" and "Organizational Development in the Armed Forces" were held in San Francisco. We anticipate organizing several panels for the 1978 Toronto APA meetings and solicite your ideas and recommendations.

The Inter-University Seminar publishes a professional quarterly entitled, Armed Forces and Society. In 1977, we published several articles of key interest to the military psychologist. "Alcoholism in the United States Navy,"

by Douglas Kolb and E. K. Eric Gunderson, and "Organizational Climate and Disciplinary Rates on Navy Ships," by Kent S. Crawford and Edmund Thomas, appeared in the Winter (February) 1977 issue; "Attitudes of Active Duty U.S. Air Force Personnel toward Military Unionization," by T. Roger Manley, Charles W. McNichols, and G. C. Saul-Young, appeared in the Summer (August) 1977 issue.

In late October, the volume, Military Unions: U.S. Trends and Issues, edited by William J. Taylor, Jr., Robert S. Lockwood, and Roger Arango, will be published in the IUS War Revolution, and Peacekeeping Series, in conjunction with Sage Fublication Inc.

This book is available from the Inter-University Seminar for \$7.50 for paper, \$17.00, cloth. An annual subscription to Armed Forces and Society is \$12.00. The cost for purchasing the separate issues of the journal including those articles of particular interest mentioned earlier is \$5.00 per issue. We also invite psychologists to submit manuscripts, concerning issues of broad psychological interest which relate to interdisciplinary perspectives, to the Inter-University Seminar. We look forward to hearing from Division 19's members concerning their ideas for the 1978 APA meetings and for future combined activities. To submit a panel proposal, please write to Colonel Robert S. Nichols, Box 454, U. S. Army War College, Carlisle Barracks, PA., 17013. To submit a manuscript, begin a subscription to Armed Forces and Society, or purchase the volume, Military Unions, please write to Ellen Stern, Executive Secretary, Inter-University Seminar on Armed Forces and Society, University of Chicago, 1126 East 59th Street, Chicago, Illinois 60637.

# Sixth Annual Psychology in DOD Symposium

The Department of Behavioral Sciences and Leadership of the United States Air Force Academy will sponsor the Biennial Psychology in the DOD Symposium from 20 through 22 April 1978. The symposium will take place at the U.S. Air Force Academy, near Colorado Springs, Colorado. Formerly called Psychology in the Air Force, the change in Symposium title reflects a broader trend towards looking at activities of all DOD behavioral scientists from a variety of disciplines. Dr. Theodore Blau, Past-President, APA, will be the keynote speaker for the Symposium.

Any questions on the Symposium should be directed to Major Gene A. Berry, DFBL, USAF Academy, Colorado, 80840. Phone contact can be made Autovon 259-2401/3860 or Area code (303)-472-2401/3860.

# Poster of New Division Members and Associates

At the Division 19 Business Meeting conducted in August, 1977, the following individuals were approved as members of the Division in their respective categories. The Division welcomes the addition of these new people into its ranks, and looks forward to seeing these individuals actively play a role in Division affairs.

# New Members as of January 1978

ALLEN, John BARBER, Herbert Franklin BAUER, Ronald Guy BEACH, Johnston BECKER, Bruce BLOOM, Richard BROEDLING, Laurie A. CARTNER, John A. CRIGLER, Patricial Woodall DAMSBO, Ann Marie EATON, Newell Kent FORBES, Raymond Lloyd, Jr. GRIFFITH, Douglas HALFF, Henry M. HAMILL, Bruce W. HARPER, John Kent HICKS, John Alson, III JOHNSON, Edgar M. JONES, Allan Paul KIRK, Raymond J. KISSLER, Gary Dean KRESS, Gary KRIBS, Harold Dewey KRINGEL, William F. LARISON, Grey Richard LINDSTROM, Lorel Linden MCCORMACK, John C. NALPANT, Edward Alan O'BRIEN, Robert Perry PETERSON, James Robert REASER, Joel M. REVELLE, William RUMSEY, Michael G. SCHIFLETT, Samuel George SCHMITT, Arthur F., Jr.

SHVERN, Uldi SVEC, Fred J. UMSTOT, Denis D. WEISEN, Joel P. WOOTEN, Alvin ZYCH, Kenneth Allen

# New Associates as of January, 1978

BELLEW, John Joseph BERMAN, Hanan Shlomo BUJARSKI, Rosalie M. CHERMOL, Brian H. DEATON, John Earl DEAN, Larry M. FORCE, Herman E. HUDAK, Edward M. LAROCCO, James M. SINGER, Frederic L. TAI, Leony Foong

# International Conference on Psychological Stress and Adjustment

The Second International Conference on Psychological Stress and Adjustment in Time of War and Peace will take place in Jerusalem on 19-23 June 1978. The central theme of the Conference is the investigation of war-related stress and of the psychological adjustment made by individuals, groups, and societies to the threat of war or the consequences of war. While such a theme is especially of interest to the State of Israel, the site of the Conference, and papers on the Israeli experience will be presented, many nations and societies will be represented in program listings. The Conference is open to all scientists and professional people in the behavioral, social, and medical sciences and the language of the Conference will be English.

For any information on the Conference or for travel, hotel, or tour arrangements, please contact Prof. N. Milgram, POB 16271, Tel Aviv, Israel.

### Call for Nominations for Fellows

Any fellow of Division 19 who wishes to nominate a member for fellow-ship status should foward the names and addresses of these individuals to Robert Nichols, Chairperson of the Fellows Committee. Deadline for submitting nominations is 28 February 1978. The appropriate address is:

COL Robert Nichols
Box 454
US Army War College
Carlisle Barracks, PA 17013

COL Nichols can be contacted on Autovon-242-3424.

### Editor's Comment

The Military Medical School, properly entitled the Uniformed Services University School of Medicine, has continued to develop its programs following the scare it received last year when not included in President Carter's budget. Having gotten its reprieve from Congress, the school is geared to turning out military physicians to serve the needs of the services. Psychology at the new school is represented by the Department of Medical Psychology which is chaired by Dr. Jerome Singer. While it has a plus in being an autonomous department from Psychiatry, the Psychology Department is considered strictly a basic science and thus, is not involved in any clinical activities nor in the training of students in clinical or applied areas. Further, Dr. Singer, at present, remains a faculty of one, until some recently hired staff joins him in the Summer, 1978. In an attempt to explore progress at the school and to keep communications and ideas exchanging, Dr. Singer has had a number of meetings with active duty psychologists representing the Navy, Army, and Air Force. Interestingly, however, to date, no active duty psychologist has received appointment to the new Medical School, unlike other departments at the university. It is a sad commentary that a small department in a school geared to turning out active-duty physicians has failed to utilize highlytrained, competent, and locally available professionals as it struggles to become a viable department. While many of these psychologists are involved in clinical activity, it seems only realistic that if Psychology at the Medical School is to have a significant and perceived useful role, it will need to broaden its scope from the restrictive pure basic science curriculum. Otherwise, it is my impression, the department will remain hidden from view, having little impact on the training of military physicians, and sadly, lose the opportunity to help develop the views and attitudes these new physicians will have and carry with them in their relationship to Psychologists. Thus, autonomy is not always a victory as Psychiatry's total domination in the applied behavior science area so well illustrates.